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1. Name
historic Young Hotel and Schillestad Buildings
and-or common Guiry and Schillestad Buildings (preferred)

2. Location

street & number 2101-2111 First Avenue — not for publication
city, town Seattle ____ vicinity of
state Washington code 053 county King code 033
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
___ district — public X _occupied ____agriculture —___ museum
_X building(s) _X_ private —___unoccupied _X commercial — park
— structure — both __work in progress __ educational ____ private residence
___'site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment — religious
___ object ___in process ____yes: restricted ____ government ___ scientific
____ being considered —X_ yes: unrestricted —_ industrial — transportation
n/a —__no — military —_other:

4. Owner of Property

name M & M Company (Neiso H. Moscatel & Leon B. Mezistrano)
street & number 92 Lenora Street
city, town Seattle ____vicinity of state Washington

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. King County Administration Building
street & number 4th and James Streets
city, town Seattle state Washington

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Seattle Inventory of Historic Resources;

title Designated City Landmark has this property been determined eligible? ___yes X _no
(Guiry Building)

date 1979 ___federal ___state ___county _X local

depository for survey records Office of Urban Conservation

city, town Seattle state Washington




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

—excellent =~ ____ deteriorated ___ unaitered _X _original site

_X good " . .___ruins _X_ altered —__moved date ..
— fair . unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Guiry and Schillestad Buildings are two adjacent and interconnected four-story, post
and beam frame, masonry structures located in Seattle's Belltown area. The buildings are
one block from the Pike Place Market Historic District. The Guiry is located at the
northwest corner of First Avenue and Lenora Street; the Schillestad abuts it to the north
and shares a common party wall.

In plan and use the two buildings are quite similar. Both have three stories above First
Avenue and a daylight basement below along the north-south alley. Historically both
buildings contained housekeeping hotel rooms occupying the upper two floors and commer-
cial uses at the ground and basement floors. The Guiry Building is the larger and more
prominent of the two. It is located at the end of the block and takes up the entire
platted lot, 60 by 112 feet. The Schillestad is less deep and, although it is the same
lot width, it takes up less than the full lot depth (60 by 75 feet).

The exteriors of both buildings are in good condition although both feature contemporary
storefronts along First Avenue. The elevation of the Schillestad above these storefronts
is characterized by an even rhythm of large, double-hung windows with cast stone headers
and projecting sills set into dark red brick masonry. The sheet metal cornice features
bands and dentils. The cornice was added in the 1930's; it replaced the original cornice
which had a raised central parapet and block modillions. An exposed steel beam above the
existing storefronts rests on cast stone pilasters. The Guiry Building's primary facades
are more expressive and reflect the Romanesque Revival style. Noteworthy features are
the corbelled masonry cornice and two-story blind arches that frame the pairs of double-
hung arched windows on the upper floors, flanked by flush masonry walls and single win-
dows at the corner bays. The masonry is lighter colored than that of the Schillestad,
the bricks are of a heavier texture, and the mortar joints wider. Portions of the south
elevation masonry were cleaned and repointed in the early 1970's and a recessed entry was
added. The alley elevations of both buildings are much more utilitarian in design and
feature double-hung windows and common brick masonry. The Guiry Buiding's windows have
brick and sheet metal sills and a simple sheet metal cap. The Schillestad Building has a
poured-concrete basement level wall and a concrete porch at the first floor that replaced
the original wood-frame porch in the 1920's. Its original double-hung windows at the
basement level have been replaced with new wood-frame fixed windows.

The exterior entry to the Guiry Building from First Avenue contains an original tile
floor spelling the word "hotel" in a slight recess. From here a continuous run of stairs
reaches a small lobby space on the second floor and a double run leads to one on the
third floor. An original skylight remains at the third floor lobby, but the glass is
missing. The access to the Schillestad is through a recessed entry on First Avenue with
a wood storefront door and window assembly, and intricate, open ironwork arch that fea-
tures a stylized "s" at its center. The small lobby on the first floor has been altered
and its details stripped or covered. The hotel floors in each building are reached by
open stairs with wood treads, risers, and railings.

The plan of the upper floors of each building includes housekeeping rooms accessed by
double-loaded corridors and lightwells. The Guiry contains a total of 54 rooms and
shared bathroom facilities arranged around a ten by 46 foot lightwell. The Schillestad
contains a total of 36 rooms around a twelve by 30 foot lightwell. Both buildings origi-
nally contained varnished wood trim, casings, chair and picture railings, wood floors,
and wood doors with glazed transom windows above. These details have been removed and/or
resurfaced for the most part in the Schillestad Building with wallpaper, textured
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plaster, and linoleum. In the Guiry Building, most details remain in fair to good condi-

tion. Transom window glazing has been filled in both buildings. The open lightwells in
both buildings have suffered considerable weather damage.

The large, open interior spaces of the first floor and basement have been modified to
accomodate the business of the current occupant. But heavy timber posts and beams and
some exposed brick work are still evident. The buildings are connected on both the first

floor and basement levels. On both levels, a five foot wide masonry arch opening in the
party wall links the buildings.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
_ .. prehistoric archeology-prehistoric community planning . . landscape architecture .. .. religion

- 1400-1499 _ archeology-historic . conservation ... law .. science
_. 1500-1599 .. agriculture - ._. economics ... literature - ... sculpture
_ .. 1600-1699 _ . architecture . ... education . military .- .. social/

1700-1799 . _art engineering ... music humanitarian
____1800-1899 X _commerce R exploratlon/settlement philosophy e theater
_X_1900- _.- communications .. industry ... politicsigovernment ___ transportation
.. invention — - other (specify)

—— - Guiry: - 1903 . o = Guiry: -Elliott -& West;—-Arehitect——

Specific dates Schillestad: 1907 Bullder Archltect Schillestad: Andrew McBean, Architect

Statement of s:Bnﬁlcoa%c%f(lﬁlﬁg‘ ng‘g&%%h) 1903 19 30

The Guiry and Schillestad Buildings are historically significant examples of the hotel-
retail structures that served Seattle's Belltown area in the early twentieth century.
Located on a slope that once rose from Elliott Bay to the foot of Denny Hill, the build-
ings provided commercial services and modest housing for working class people of the
area. The buildings are connected internally and were conceived together as evidenced by
the common party wall agreement between the building owners in 1903. Both buildings
preceded the extensive Denny Hill regrade project which began in 1908, and which included
lowering grades directly east of the site. Today the Guiry and Schillestad Buildings are
two of the remaining twelve masonry SRO hotel-retail buildings that were built in Bell-
town before 1910. The two buildings' architectural variety--the Guiry's Romanesque
Revival style and the Schillestad's simpler, plainer, and more residential character--
trace a change in design attitudes at the turn of the century. Together they are an
important remnant of what was once a contiguous district of similar buildings and they
reflect an early Seattle lifestyle in which commercial activity, workplace, and dwelling
coexisted. This lifestyle finally ended with the regrading of nearby Denny Hill and the
subsequent construction of larger apartment buildings for middle-class tenants.

The Guiry Building was built in 1903 from a design by architects Elliott and West who
practiced in Seattle from 1901 to 1904. The design, prepared for owners John Carney and
Charles Cawsey, called for a three story Romanesque Revival building with a north common
structural wall which anticipated the construction of the Schillestad Building. The
Guiry, originally named the Young Hotel, contained a saloon at street grade until Prohi-
bition and 54 hotel rooms above. An ad in the 1908 Polk's City Directory describes its
features: '"all hot and cold water in rooms; brick building; steam heat and electric
lights; a fine view of the Sound; all outside rooms--finely furnished.!" Rates were
moderate, originally set at 50¢ per night to $2.50 per week. The hotel was renamed the
Denismore, later the Haas, and finally the Guiry Hotel after John J. Guiry, who managed
it in the 1920's and 1930's. Beginning in the mid-1920's it contained a number of retail
furniture stores at street grade. The English Furniture Company was located in the Guiry
from 1926 to 1969. The Continental Furniture store filled the first floor and basement
of the Guiry (and that of the Scillestad) from 1972 to the present. The hotel rooms,
which had come to be used as SRO dwellings, were closed in 1975 due to maintenance and
safety issues.

Architect Andrew McBean designed the adjacent Schillestad Building for its owner Ole
Schillestad. It was constructed in 1907, the same year that the nearby Pike Place Market
was officially established by the city. Like the Guiry, it contained working class hotel
rooms on the upper two floors. And, like the Guiry, it contained a number of furniture
stores beginning in the 1920's. The Belltown Furniture Company occupied the space for
several decades. Although it is not known when the buildings were internally connected,
several stores have used the first and basement levels of the two buildings commonly
through the vaulted openings in the masonry party wall--the English Furniture Store
beginning in the 1930's, and Continental Furniture since 1969. As with the Guiry, the
Schillestad's hotel rooms were closed in the mid-1970's.



9. Major Bibliographical References

King County Assessor's Office, Archival Tax Records.

Polk's City Director, 1903-1930.

Seattle Office of Urban Conservation, Guiry Building Historic Nomination 12/27/76,
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property __less than one

Quadrangle name __Seattle South Quadrangle scale ___1:24,000
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Verbal boundary description and justification The property of the Guiry and Schillestad Buildings
is platted and recorded as Lots 10 and 11, Block 39 of A.A. Denny's 6th Addition to the
City of Seattle. The property is bounded:by Lenora Street to the south, lst Avenue to
the east, and Lot 8 to the north.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state n/a code o ¢~ county code

A\

state n/a code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Susan Boyle, Consultant

organizatioﬁ Olson/Walker Architects, P.S. date April 22, 1985
street & number 1507 Western Ave., Pike Hillclimb telephone (206) 624-5670
city or town Seattle state Washington

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—___ national ____ state X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register andertify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Nation Park Service

State Historic Preservation Officer signature / Z‘, /}

title State Historic Preserv /[Offlcer date June 19, 1985

~s

For NPS use only
| hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

date 2T/
AN

Keeper of the National Register

Attest: date
Chief of Registration

GPO 804-788
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Historically the Guiry and Schillestad Buildings were part of a large collection or
neighborhood of hotel-retail buildings. Four other hotels, for example, were located on
this block alone in the 1920's. And furniture stores dominated commercial activity in
this part of the city. But the Guiry and Schillestad Buildings are among the few surviv-
ing examples in Belltown that still reflect this earlier pattern of Seattle's commercial
history. Today, the buildings are commonly owned and used jointly as one store on their
lower two floors. Proposed rehabilitation will return their upper floors to residential
use--moderate and low-income rental housing with shared exit stairs, corridors, and a
single elevator core.
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THE GUIRY BUILDING
2101-2105% First Avenue, Seattle

Historic photo (copied) from the King County Tax Accessor's Office,

ca. 1930, showing the building operating as a transient hotel and retail
space for the "English Furniture Co." store. Subsequent photos show that
the building signage painted directly over the masonry was covered with
another layer of paint, and later removed in the early 1970s. Storefronts
at the street level along First Avenue were also replaced.
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Above: This ariel view of Seattle's belltown and northern downtown areas shows the
area of Denny Hill that was regraded and leveled by 1917. The Guiry Hotel Building is
shown top center left, on the upper right corner of First Avenue and Lenora Street.
The text of the map describes the working class residential neighborhood that began
with early, mixed-use buildings such as the Guiry Hotel and the adjoining Schillestad
Building, which both contained retail shops and housekeeping hotel rooms.

Photo source: The Photography Collection, University of Washington
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Above: A view looking north on First Avenue, ca. 1905. The Guiry Hotel Building is

shown on the left, a block from where this photo was taken. The building's masonry

facade and Romanesque Revival styling appear to be more substantial and permanent than

the earlier wood-clad frame structures on the street. To the right, the edge of Denny

Hill which was regraded and leveled from 1910 to 1920 to make way for increased residential

and commercial development.

Photo source: The Photography Collection, University of Washington

9133B8S ‘ONUSAY ISITI %S0TZ-10TZ

ONIGQTIING AY¥YINS FHL



